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463 West Street was constructed in 1896-1898 on part of a block bounded by West,
Bethune, Washington, and Bank Streets on the western fringe of Greenwich Village
in New York City. The structure was built to house the laboratory facilities

of the Western Electric Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of the American
Telephone and Telephone Company. 463 West Street is a conglomerate of plain,
sturdy, 13 story, solid concrete and steel commercial structures faced in buff
brick and trimmed in terra-cotta. Constructed according to the best standard
factory designs of the period, the building is of no major architectural
significance.

From 1898 to 1966 463 West Street was the home of the Bell Telephone Laboratories,
the name of a company jointly owned since 1925 by American Telephone and
Telegraph Company and Western Electric. By the 1966 the building no longer met
the laboratory needs of the Bell System. Bell Telephone Laboratories gave up the
building and moved to New Jersey.

In 1967 the building was purchased by Westbeth Incorporated, a non-profit organi-
zation established to convert the empty laboratories and offices into "living
unit-studios" that would provide low cost housing for New York artists endangered
of being driven out of the city by spiralling loft rental costs. Between 1967
and 1969 Richard Meir, according to Ada Louise Huxtable, "...one of the citys
more conspicuously talented and stylish younger architects," transformed the
building into 383 studio type living and working units. The conversion, which
was realized at the low cost of $12,000 per unit, received considerable

critical acclaim. Mayor John Lindsay officially opened Westbeth in May 1970.
Local and national media praised the venture as an example of recycling an

older building while at the same time providing artists with low cost housing

and studio facilities.

The integrity of the exterior of 463 West Street is whole. It is unchanged from
its appearance during the years the building housed the Bell Telephone Labora-
tories. The interior has been completely transformed into living units, a

dance studio,and various commercial facilities.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In his 1908 annual report to the stockholders of the American Telephone and Telegraph
Corporation (AT&T), Theodore N. Vail, often called the father of the giant company,
outlined the organization's basic objectives. Our goal, he said, is "one policy, one
system, universal service." This slogan, which guides the world's largest monopoly to
the present day, served as the basis for the establishment and development of one of
the United States' oldest, most successful, and most prestigious industrial research
institutions, the Bell Telephone Laboratories.

Bell Telephone Laboratories is one of four major components of the Bell System, the
others being AT&T with its operating companies, Western Electric, and the Long Lines
Department. As presently constituted Bell Telephone Laboratories was established in
1925 as a separate corporation jointly owned by AT&T and Western Electric. AT&T
funded basic research while Western Electric supported engineering research. Although
known as Bell Telephone Laboratories only since 1925, the lab traces its history to
a small shop in Boston established by a Mr. Williams in 1875. 1In 1898 Western
Electric, which had previously established two labs of its own, moved into a new
facility at 463 West Street in New York City. In 1907 the Boston facility joined the
Western Electric labs on West Street thus bringing together the research and
development activities of Vail's '"one system" under a single roof. From a beginning
in 1907 with a few hundred employees on West Street, Bell Telephone Laboratories has
~grown until today it operates 20 laboratories in ten states, employes approximately
17,000 people, and has an annual budget (1973) of $536,000,000. It is the worlds
largest private research laboratory.

In 1939 an admiring author wrote a history of AT&T which he subtitled, "The Story of
a Great Monopoly." Discussing the Bell Telephone Laboratories, he stated that since
the beginning it activities included "...all the engineering arts which pertain to
electrical communications equipment, and all the science basic to those arts." The
laboratories had a two fold objective; first, "...to advance the art of wire
telephony," and second, "...to obtain a degree of knowledge, influence, and control
in adjacent industries sufficient to protect the capital investment against possible
competition by other means of communication." Since its inception the lab has
pursued both science and engineering, i.e. part of its energies are devoted to pure
or fundamental research and part to applying the findings of pure science to com-
munication technology. The laboratory thus advances the interests of pure science
while at the same time enhancing "Ma Bell's" technological position in the field

of telecommunications and solving her operating problems of a technical, hardware

nature.
(Continued)
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The accomplishments of the Bell Telephone Laboratories have been truly remarkable.
Technological breakthroughs, many of which were the results of pure science
research, have included: high fidelity recording (1925); sound motion pictures
(1926); television transmission (1927); color TV transmission (1929); coaxial
cable carrier system (1929); radio astronomy (1933); digital computer (1938);
transistor (1947); microwave radio relay system (1948); direct distance dialing
(1951); silicon solar cell (1954); transocianic telephone cable (1956); lasers
(1958); large superconducting magnets (1961); satellite communications (1962);

and picturephone (1964).

The significance of theBell Telephone Laboratories in the history of science in
the United States is that the company is pioneer role in industrial research.
The lab was one of the first to demonstrate the intimate relationship between
science and technology and industrial development.

The end of the 19th century witnessed the emergence of the basic institutions
which have guided the American pursuit of science. The institutions, or

estates of science, are the government, the universities, the foundations, and
the industrial research laboratories. 1Industrial research laboratories developed
first in those industries that owed their very existence to the scientific
discoveries of the second half of the 19th century. Prominate among them were
the chemical, pharmacutical, and petroleum industries as well as a wide variety
of industries established to exploit the wonders of electricity. The telephone,
Alexander Grahmn Bell's invention upon which the Bell System was built, was a
child of electricity. Company officals early recognized that they must turn to
science and technology to, in the terms of the period, improve the art of
telephony. In establishing its own research laboratories, some company
executives and almost all who directed and staffed the lab thought of themselves
as disciples of the progress science and technology brings to all mankind. But
the company also had a more direct interest in conducting its own research. By
making its own discoveries, and not leaving them to the universities, let alone
to other companies, AT&T would secure patent rights to new technologies which
would enhance the company's market position and contribute to its growth. (The
court battles over patent rights and infringements were especially brutal in the
electrical industries.) The American system of free enterprise capitalism was
thus joined to the pursuit of scientific knowledge as an integral part of
industrial activity. Knowledge and the ability to 'produce" it in the industrial
research laboratory became a part of a company's capital assests. 'Ma Bell's"
growth into every area of the communication industry is testimony to the cor-
porate advantages and wealth the company has reaped from its dedicated investment

in research and development. f,———~\\>
N 7é " (Continued)
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The significance of the discoveries of the Bell Telephone Laboratories to

American civilization and culture is apparent from the list of accomplishments
noted above. From the telephone to satellites, from motions pictures to
television, the discoveries of the Bell Labs dominate the telecommunication
industries and have had a fundamental impart on countless other industries. The
nature of their impact on American culture and civilization, their human effect,
significance, and meaning, has become an integral part of social and cultural
study and criticism of this century. Psychologists, sociologists, anthropologists,
pholosophers, artists, literary critics, and culture critics of every taste and
prejudice have continuously examined and reexamined, interpreted and reinterpreted,
the human meaning of the revolution in telecommunications which the Bell Telephone
Laboratories has led since its beginning in 1907. Some claim the quailty of our
civilization as well as our standard of material well being have been infinitely
raised. Others deride the whole venture as an exercise in dehumanization,
alienation, or vulgarization. But all agree that the revolution in telecommuni-
cations has significantly affected American economic, social, political, and
cultural reality. In its research and development activities the Bell Telephone
Laboratories have been in the technological forefront of this transformation.
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